ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 20, 2002
3:20 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer

Representati ve Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 411

"An Act relating to physician assistants; providing that a
physi cian assistant is a health care provider covered by certain
laws relating to nedical malpractice actions; adding physician
assistants to the list of providers against whom unfair
discrimnation relating to health care insurance is prohibited
and to the |list of providers who can provide proof of
di sablement or handicap for the purpose of notor vehicle
registration or for the purpose of obtaining a special |icense
plate or a special parking permt; and providing for an
effective date."

- MOVED HB 411 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO 318
"An Act relating to a health insurance uniform prescription drug
information card; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED CSHB 318(L&C) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 411
SHORT TI TLE: PHYSI CI AN ASSI STANTS
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) FATE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2002



Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 13/ 02 2233 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 13/ 02 2233 (H HES, L&C

02/ 21/ 02 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 21/ 02 (H Moved Qut of Conmttee

02/ 21/ 02 (H) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 22/ 02 2362 (H HES RPT 5DP 1NR

02/ 22/ 02 2362 (H) DP: DYSON, COGHILL, W LSON,
Cl SSNA,

02/ 22/ 02 2362 (H JOULE; NR KOHRI NG

02/ 22/ 02 2363 (H) FN1: ZERO( ADM

02/ 22/ 02 2363 (H FN2: ZERQ( CED)

03/ 20/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 318

SHORT TI TLE: UNI FORM PRESCRI PTI ON DRUG CARD
SPONSCR(S) : LABOR & COVMERCE BY REQUEST

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 14/ 02 1958 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1958 (H) L&C, FIN

02/ 01/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 01/ 02 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 01/ 02 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 25/ 02 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 25/ 02 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 04/ 02 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 04/ 02 (H Bi || Post poned

03/ 20/ 02 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 416

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 411.

ED HALL, Li aison

Al aska Acadeny of Physician assistants

13601 Wndward Circle

Anchor age, Al aska 99516

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 411.

JOHN RI LEY, PA; Board Chair

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2002



Al aska Primary Care Association

6411 Italy Crcle

Anchor age, Al aska 99516

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 411.

SUSAN MASON- BOUTERSE, Executive Director

Sunshi ne Community Health Center

M| e 44 Tal keetna Spur Road

Tal keetna, Al aska 99676

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 411.

STAN RI DGEVWAY, Deputy Director

Di vi sion of Insurance

Department of Comrunity and Economi ¢ Devel opnent

P. 0. box 110805

Juneau, Al aska 99801-0805

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 411. Addr essed possible
H PAA regul ations as related to HB 318.

AMY ERI CKSON, St aff

to Representative Lisa Mirkowski

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 408

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 318, and explained the
changes in the conmttee substitute.

ERI N CAREY BYRNE, Executive Director

Al aska Pharmaceutical Association

PO Box 101185

Anchor age, Al aska 99510-1185

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 318.

REED STOOPS, Lobbyist for Aetna and

Heal t h I nsurance Associ ation of Anerica

240 Main Street, Nunmber 600

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 318, and nmde suggestions
to anend the current |anguage for the purpose of clarification.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-39, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Commerce
Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:20 p.m Menber s

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2002



present at the call to order were Representatives Kott, Meyer
Hal cro, and Murkowski . Represent ati ves Rokeberg, Crawford, and
Hayes arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 411- PHYSI CI AN ASSI STANTS

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI announced that the first matter before the
commttee would be HOUSE BILL NO 411, "An Act relating to
physi ci an assistants; providing that a physician assistant is a
heal th care provider covered by certain laws relating to nedica
mal practi ce actions; adding physician assistants to the list of
provi ders agai nst whom unfair discrimnation relating to health
care insurance is prohibited and to the list of providers who
can provide proof of disablenent or handicap for the purpose of
notor vehicle registration or for the purpose of obtaining a
special license plate or a special parking permt; and providing
for an effective date.”

Number 0090

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 411, testified before the conmmttee. He said HB 411 was
witten at the request of the [Anerican] Acadeny of Physician
Assi st ant s. The acadeny submtted three resolutions to
acconpany the bill and to be included in state law. He said the
resolutions were drafted in order to update existing state |aws
to include physician assistants (PAs) as recogni zed providers of
medi cal care. He said that it is believed that when the |aws
were drafted and passed physician assistants were not as
preval ent as healthcare providers in Al aska. Over the ensuing
years physician assistants have becone integral to providing
healthcare to rural and urban areas in the state - in rural
areas, they are the primary healthcare providers and wthout
them many areas of the state would be wthout "true nedical
aid."

Nunber 0197

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said the three resolutions attenpt to
rectify problematic areas of the statutes, since physician

assistants aren't listed as recognized healthcare providers.
This has hindered nedical followup for the patients of
physi ci an assistants. He said the statutory changes wll

pr event di scrim natory action agai nst PAs wi t hout t he
opportunity for themto be assessed by their peers.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE FATE said [HB 411] gives PAs equal footing under
i nsurance prograns for both paynent and liability purposes. He
reported that HB 411 allows PAs the ability to authorize
handi capped and other special nedical-problem |icense plates.
Representative Fate stated that the Division of |Insurance,
Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent, "is neutral”
on HB 411. He noted that in the House Health, Education and
Social Services Standing Conmittee hearing [on HB 411] the
division made a point about direct paynent to the office in
which the PA worked. He explained the receipt |ocation of
paynent is determ ned by either the officer under which the PA
wor ks, or by regulation under the Division of |Insurance.

Number 313

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said HB 411 attenpts to bring PAs parity
"With other healing professions in their ability to authorize
those types of things that they can authorize under the
physician's office that they work."

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked how a malpractice suit brought
against a PA would be handled if the PA was working under a
doct or somewhere.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE characterized t he physi ci an - PA
relationship as a "nmaster-slave relationship." If a PAis hired
by a physician's office, t hat physician is ultimtely

responsi ble for the actions of that PA. He pointed out that all

menbers of the nedical profession have mal practice insurance.
However, Representative Fate said it would be a good idea for a
PA in rural Al aska, doing primary care work, to carry additiona

mal practi ce insurance.

Nunber 0462

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI asked if the nedical association had | ooked at
the i ssue and wei ghed in one way or the other.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said the Alaska Medical Association was
neutral when the PAs got a position on the Board O Medical
Exam ners. He said he believed that they were neutral on this
particul ar issue.

CHAI R MURKOWEKI asked if anyone opposes HB 411.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied no. He deferred any further
techni cal questions to Ed Hall

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER inquired as to the educational requirenents
for a PA

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said that PAs have certain, "very specific
limtations" and a "standardi zed curriculunt that enable themto
be PAs, however, he was not aware of the specific requirenents.

Nunmber 0649

ED HALL, Liaison, Alaska Acadeny of Physician Assistants,
testified via teleconference. He said his organization believes
[HB 411] is very inportant to allow PAs the ability to practice
Wi t hout the unnecessary encunbrances [the profession] has been
suffering, especially in conparison wth other m d- | evel

caregivers, such as nurse practitioners. He specified that PAs
did not help to initiate [HB 411] as a ploy to be independent
practitioners. He enphasized that PAs nust, by definition,

coll aborate with, and ultimtely answer to a physician.

MR HALL said it was in the PA's best interest to carry
liability insurance, as is the conmobn practice. He said nost PA
education prograns are Bachelor's prograns, but that there are
al so Master's prograns. Certification is required in Alaska,
and is acquired by passing a national certifying exam 100 hours
of continuing nedical education every 2 years, and re-
certification every 6 years.

MR. HALL offered that the nedical board gave the acadeny their
bl essing and encouragenent and he did not know of anyone who
stood agai nst the | egislation.

Number 0930

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if a PA nust be practicing under a
| i censed physi ci an.

MR  HALL replied in the positive. He pointed out that
occasional ly insurance conpani es choose not to reinburse because
care was provided by a PA Therefore, [HB 411] wll be an
answer to those insurance conpani es, he said.

Nunmber 0985
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG characterized AS 09.55.560 as the

"golden key to the kingdont statute. He said a profession
defined under that statute can require a health care insurance

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2002



conpany to reinburse them for service. He asked if there were
any testifiers fromthe insurance industry.

CHAI R MURKOWASKI reported that there are no nore peopl e schedul ed
to testify.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG viewed that as troubling, and asked if
any representatives of the insurance industry testified at the
House Health, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee
meet i ng.

Nunber 1042
REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded in the negati ve.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if it was possible for a PA to
practice without a physician being in the sane |location at the
same tine.

Nunmber 1068

MR. HALL answered that it was possible for a PA to practice out
of the direct supervision of a physician, but the law requires a
face-to-face neeting of the physician and PA twice a quarter.
Once a nonth there nmust be an el ectronic correspondence between
the [physician and the PA].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for an exanple of healthcare
servi ces deni ed rei nbursenent by an insurance conpany.

MR. HALL gave an exanple of a patient who cane into his office
with a work-related injury. He also had an abscess on his el bow
that was treated and billed under [workers' conpensation]. He
said the insurance conpany declined reinbursenent of services
because they were provided by a PA He explained that at the
time he was working with his coll aborative physician in the sane
of fice.

Nunber 1202
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the charge for a procedure
woul d be different because it was perforned by a PA rather than
a physici an.
MR. HALL answered that the charge isn't cheaper in regard to

what is charged by the healthcare provider, but insurance
conpanies reinburse differently [depending upon who perforned

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2002



the procedure]. He stated that HB 411 is not concerned wth
that issue, but rather the bill establishes that a PA can bill
for a service in the first place. He voiced that [HB 411]
brings the statute in line with the existing practice in the
state.

Nunber 1279

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if a PA could be the only nedica
care provider in a very rural community.

MR. HALL replied in the affirmative. He explained that if a
supervising doctor finds that an insurance conpany wll not
rei mburse, services mght be denied in the renote areas. He
noted that nurse practitioners have no trouble being reinbursed
and they charge the sanme as PAs for the same services.

Number 1300

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is any "potentiality for
abuse" of the provision in Section 3 that allows a PAto issue a
"di sabl ed parking pass.”

MR. HALL stated he saw no nore potential for abuse than is the
case for a doctor or nurse practitioner. He expl ai ned that
nurse practitioners are able to issue special parking permts
and that PAs are equivalent providers of service to nurse
practitioners, although PAs have nore supervision from a
physi ci an. He said he nerely wants to see parity anongst md-
| evel providers.

Nunber 1485

JOHN RILEY, Physician Assistant (PA); Board Chair, Al aska
Primary Care Association, testified via teleconference. He
informed the commttee that his association's mssion is to
support clinics who serve patients, regardless of one's ability
to pay. Physician assistants provide a large share of the
health care provided in rural Alaska, and many rural clinics are
staffed exclusively by PAs.

MR. RILEY said there have been several instances of insurance
conpanies refusing to reinburse services provided by PAs. He
gave an exanple that happened in Tal keetna. He urged passage of
[HB 411].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2002



CHAIR MURKOWSKI asked M. Riley if the 250 PAs [in Al aska] he
had specified in the resolution were primarily in rural Al aska.

MR R LEY related his belief that at |least half of them were in
rural areas of the state.

Nunmber 1599

SUSAN MASON- BOUTERSE, Executive Director, Sunshine Community
Health Center, testified via teleconference. She said hers is a
md-level clinic with four PAs who provide the primary care.
She said the providers are critical to the community's ongoing
heal t hcar e. Because state statutes do not include PAs in the
listing of healthcare providers, her clinic periodically has its
billing denied by third-party payers. She said it represents a
significant barrier to healthcare for individuals with health
insurance as well as a barrier to potential revenues for
clinics. She reported that in the current financial situation

her clinic needs to be able to maxi m ze whatever revenue it can.
She urged the conmttee to pass [HB 411].

Number 1692

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked if soneone needing a tenporary disabled
permt would have to go to Wasill a.

M5. MASONBOUTERSE said that was not necessarily the case
because there is a private physician in the Tal keetna area.
But, if the doctor is not around or the person is a patient at
the Sunshine Cdinic, they would be required to |eave town for
t hat service.

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI noted that it would probably be easier to get
needed healthcare services in a place |ike Talkeetna than a
pl ace |ike Unalaska because Talkeetna has a road out and
Unal aska is exclusively served by PAs.

Number 1751

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he believes [HB 411] to be a very good
bill and thanked Representative Fate for bringing it forward.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG directed the commttee's attention to

page 2, lines 6-7, which reads, "an enployee of a healthcare
provi der operating wthin the course and scope of enploynent”
Section 1 defines what a healthcare provider is. He said he

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 20, 2002



felt the |language authorizes a PA as it stands, however, being
specific woul d be an i nprovenent.

Number 1835

CHAIR MJRKOANSKI asked if there exists an enployee-enployer
rel ati onshi p between PAs and their "col |l aborating physician."

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said that [as a dentist] he had experience
wth simlar circunstances wth [dental] hygi eni st s. He
recalled a question of private contracting versus the enployee-
enpl oyer relationship, and for tax purposes it was deened that
t hey were enpl oyees.

Nunmber 1880

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked why Medi care and Medicaid rei nbursed
PAs | ess than they do regul ar physicians.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE deferred to M. Hall.

MR. HALL said, "Because they can" [reinburse PAs less]. He said
the argunent about a |ower education level is used, although the
standard of care is exactly the sane. He explained that the
same double standard exists for an assistant physician to a
surgeon where the assistant physician is reinbursed at a |ower
rate than the surgeon. It makes sense to add PAs to the list of
caregivers because the true role of PAs is not apparent to all
i nsurance conpani es, he remarked.

Nunber 1981

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked, with regards to Section 2, if this
woul d protect PAs fromdiscrimnatory [l ower] reinbursenents

MR. HALL replied in the positive.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked Representative Fate if the state's
match  for the resulting higher Medi care  and Medi cai d
rei nbursenents woul d not be higher as well.

MR. RILEY said the sane regulations for Medicare with the 85
percent reinbursenent applies to nurse practitioners. He said
[HB 411] did not set any floor on fees. "It just states that if
you reinburse one provider for providing a service, you
reinburse all other providers on this list for providing that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 20, 2002



servi ce. It doesn't specify anything about the reinbursenent
| evel ," he expl ai ned.

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI offered that there exists the ability to
di scri m nate anongst providers.

VR. RILEY said Medicaid does not have a differential
rei mbur senent for providers.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE explained that insurance conpanies do not
know who does the treatnent. In matching the funds, the anobunt
woul dn't change, "and it's already taking into account, the
si ngl e experience that that charge is being nmade for."

Nunber 2094

REPRESENTATIVE HALCRO said he did not quite understand
Representative Fate's response but he expressed his fear that
the requirement that PAs be paid on the sane level as a
physician will raise the level paid by Medicare or Mdicaid, and
in turn raise the cost to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE sai d:

| msconstrued your first statenent there. Now it
becomes a differential of pricing rather than a
differential of treating, and that | really can't
answer and to how nuch. I"'m not really sure whether
there's really been anything that wll indicate what
that would be.... you know, if there could even be a

fiscal note to it because at the present tine you
don't know how nuch is going to be transferred. You
don't know how much nore work or |less work or the sane
wor k, the amount of work the PA will do to nake that
differential in pricing cogent as far as the insurance
paynents are concerned. So you mght have a future
fiscal note, but at the present tine it would be
nearly inpossible to even ascertain what that would
be.

Number 2160

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he believed it wuld be the
| egislature's policy to allow a differential in pricing based on

the scope of a provider's occupational Ilicense as in AS
21. 36. 090(d). He said like many of the statutes, it could be
read different ways. He said, "Wether or not by underwiting

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2002



differently, and paying and reinbursing differently by the
license, you're providing wunfair discrimnation based the
service." He said he would feel a |lot nore confortable if there
were soneone at the neeting "from the Division of |nsurance who
could interpret this."

Nunber 2208

STAN Rl DGEWAY, Deput y Director, Division of | nsur ance,
Departnent of Conmmunity and Econom c Developnent, testified
before the commttee. He related his wunderstanding that a
physi cian woul d be paid at a certain level, a nurse practitioner
at another, and so on. He said he isn't an expert and thus he
offered to have Katie Canpbell look into it nore deeply.

Number 2248

REPRESENTATI VE FATE reported that there is a "differential in
pricing and charging”" and not a differential in paynent. He
explained that a differential in paynent is what would affect
[the state's funding] match. He stated that there is a "set
standard of amount to pay for certain services, regardless of
what the physician or PA charged.” He said, "There is a

stability between the max that we already have, based on the
experience of services."

MR. RIDGEWAY gave an exanple of a reinbursenent form with a
charge of $8,000. He said an insurance conpany m ght say, based
on contract, that it will pay $2,500. There is a big difference
between what is charged and what is actually paid. He voi ced
that he doesn't think [HB 411] would interfere wth that
arrangenent, whereby Medicare, Medicaid, and insurance conpanies
set their fees at a certain |level.

Number 2300
REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked:

If I ama PA and you cone to see ne, and for the sane
procedure | bill $100 and Medicare says, "Andrew,
you're a PA so normally if you were a doctor we would
rei nburse $80, but we are going to reinburse you $65
because you are a PA." So therefore, | get less than
a physician would get. Now, we pass this bill,
there's no nore discrimnation; the first tine they
send nme a check for less than they'd send a physician
| go, "You can't discrimnate against ne, we just

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2002



passed a law, you need to pay ne the $90."' Therefore
they have to pay $15 nore, or however nuch nore, and
then we would have to cone up with an conmensurate
mat ch.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if he was m ssing sonet hi ng.

MR. RIDGEVWAY said that he did not have an answer to that
gquestion, "mainly because you can charge anything, but what the
i nsurance conpany pays is totally different from what you
charge. " He said that physicians can't cone back and ask for
nore noney in sonme cases with Medicaid and Medi care because that
is an agreed anount.

Nunmber 2358

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI asked if it would be the insurance that would
cover a certain anount for a service, regardless of who perforns
it.

MR. RI DGEVWAY replied "yes."
TAPE 02-39, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he thought it nore of a HESS
[ Departnent of Health & Social Services] issue than an [D vision
of] Insurance issue. He said, "If HESS thought it was a dollar
i ssue here, we would have a fiscal note from theni that would
probably be indeterm nate.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG di sagreed with Representative Hayes and
said, "This is an insurance question."

Nunber 2327
CHAI R MJRKOWBKI of fered her understanding that the division had

taken a neutral position on the matter, and that the division
determ ned that there should be a zero fiscal note.

MR. RI DGEVWAY said Representative Mirkowski was correct and that
the division just regulates insurance. [ House Bill 411] would
add no cost to the division, and therefore no fiscal note.

Nunber 2302

REPRESENTATI VE = ROKEBERG sai d hi s interpretation of t he
"relatively anbiguous |anguage” was that the status quo is

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 20, 2002



preserved by [HB 411], "therefore, if there is an ability of an
underwriter to make a distinction between the service provided
by a PA or a physician, that this doesn't change that." He
added that he didn't care for the |anguage, and that it needs to
be clarified.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Representative Fate if he could
verify with the Division of Insurance what the inpact of the
| anguage in Section 2 is as far as allowng health insurance
conpanies to reinburse a PA at a different rate than that of a
physi ci an. He asked if "that's allowable or this nmaintains the
status quo ... or as M. Ridgeway and we've discussed here, is
it based on the service, not the type of provider?"

Nunber 2199

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noved to report HB 411 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, HB 411 was noved out of House Labor
and Comrerce Standing Committee.

HB 318- UNI FORM PRESCRI PTI ON DRUG CARD

Number 2173

CHAI R MURKOWSKI announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 318, "An Act relating to a health insurance
uni form prescription drug information card; and providing for an
effective date."

Nunber 2158

AMY ERICKSON, Staff to Representative Lisa Mirkowski, Al aska
State Legislature, informed the commttee that HB 318 has been
t hrough seven new drafts since the last tine it was heard. The
new version is clean, concise, and lists only the m ninm
gui del i nes necessary to process prescription clains. She stated
that HB 318 is intended to provide practical guidelines for
entities producing nenber ID cards for use in the drug benefit

i ndustry so that pharmacists will have the ability to spend nore
time on patient care and |ess time deciphering insurance benefit
cards. Addi tional ly, patients wll spend less tinme at

pharmacies waiting for prescriptions, and clainms processing wll
be nore consistent and accurate.

M5. ERICKSON remnded the commttee that HB 318 is now
applicable to all health insurance plans, instead of just group

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 20, 2002



pl ans. House Bill 318 also extends requirenents so that all
entities issuing drug cards are included, enrollees and
dependents can be listed on the cards now, and an insurer does
not have to reissue a second card if a previously issued card
has all the information required in HB 318.

Nunmber 2088

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG i nquired about the reissuing of a new
card, whereby an insurer wouldn't have to issue another card
until "their regular cycle canme up." He referred to subsection
(b) and asked if that clarifies the issue.

MS. ERI CKSON said that is accurate.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the commttee adopted a
di fferent reconmmendati on than the one he proposed.

M5. ERICKSON replied in the affirmative. She offered that
Representati ve Rokeberg was suggesting that no insurers would
have to reissue a new card prior to the effective date. She

expl ai ned that "was one of the points of contention that we did
not include in the bill."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG voi ced that this would create a private
fiscal note.

M5. ERICKSON said, "Not if you decide that can't happen in
commttee."

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if the draft that is before the
commttee is Version R

Nunber 2017

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO nopved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 318, Version 22-LS1061\R, Ford, 3/14/02,
as the working docunent. There being no objection, Version R
was before the conmttee.

Nunmber 1993

ERIN CAREY BYRNE, Executive Director, Alaska Pharnmaceuti cal
Associ ation, testified via teleconference in support of HB 318.
She noted that HB 318 was adequately adjusted to reflect the
i ssues raised by the insurer opposition. She noted that Version
R is not [the Al aska Pharnaceutical Association's] "original

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 20, 2002



idealized bill." The tinme has cone for standard information to
be provided on insurance benefit cards.

M5. BYRNE informed the conmmttee that 19 other states have
already enacted simlar legislation, wth eight additional
states pending action. She told the coomittee nenbers that the
end beneficiaries of HB 318 are "your constituents who wll wait
a mnimal anount of tine for nedication dispensing and drug
t her apy counseling.”

Number 1945

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked why there isn't any federal
| egislation to get a standardi zed I D card across the nation.

M5. BYRNE agreed that it seens nore logical to enact this on the
federal level, but there is "a state rights assertion issue,"”
whereas if the state can't "work it out" then the federal
regul ation gets put into place. It would be a long and slow
process.

Number 1903

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to page 2, line 11, relating to
a bank identification nunber, and asked, "Wlose bank | D nunber
is this?"

M5. BYRNE replied, "That's an either/or." Some [insurers] use
t he I nt ernati onal identifier and sone use t he bank
identification nunber (BIN). That is the standard that is on
cards in order for the clains to be processed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if [the nunber] is identifying the
i nsurance conpany or the individual person who is covered.

M5. BYRNE replied it is the conpany that is being identified.
In further response to Representative Rokeberg, M. Byrne
explained that "it's not for the bank, it's ... whichever
identifier nunber that the particular insurer wshes to use.”
Most [insurers] don't use a [BIN], but it is an option.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG i nqui red about the international nunber.
M5. BYRNE expl ained that the international nunber is the clains
processi ng nunber. She offered that since the conmttee nenbers

are State of Alaska enployees, these nunbers are already on
their insurance ID cards. She said it's sinply referred to as a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 20, 2002



"routing nunber," and that the [BIN shouldn't be confused with
a bank account nunber.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the bank nunber has anything to
do with an electronic fund transfer.

M5. BYRNE replied in the negative.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked, "You want three groups of
nunber s?"

M5. BYRNE responded by saying that nost of the insurance cards
al ready contain these nunbers. She offered that sone insurance
cards have the appropriate information, but there are those
conpanies that need to start incorporating basic processing
information in order for pharmacists to better serve their
clients.

Nunmber 1743

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to page 2, line 1, and asked if
the National Council for Prescription Drug Prograns Pharnacy
Identification Card I nplenmentation Guide is sonmething that would
be periodically adjusted, because it ties in with the nandate
that the director of the Division of Insurance shall nake
regul at ory changes.

M5. BYRNE replied that it nmay change, but noted that included on
the National Council for Prescription Drug Prograns (NCPDP)
advisory commttee are the insurers; they' re part of the NCPDP.

Nunmber 1699

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expressed concern with directing the
Division [of Insurance] to adopt regulations to conform with a
guide that's going to change fromtime to tine. He nenti oned
that this would be granting legislative authority to the
"national council [NCPDP]."

M5. BYRNE added that [HB 318] only requires a card to be
rei ssued when a change is substantive. She said NCPDP requires
a 90 percent consensus of all present to nmake any change [to the
gui de] .

Nunmber 1658

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- March 20, 2002



CHAI R MJURKOWBKI noted that the [division] director is directed
to look to the standards that are set out in the NCPDP guide, or
the standards that are outlined in [paragraph] (2).

M5. BYRNE thanked Representative Mrkowski and said, "That's
absolutely correct.™

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG restated his belief that this would be
"granting |l egislative power to the national council by statute.”

CHAI R MURKOWBKI di sagreed with Representative Rokeberg's concern
and stated, "Wat we are doing is directing the Director of the
Division of Insurance to look to the standards that we have
identified in [paragraph] (2)." She offered that these
standards m ght be nore neatly outlined in the NCPDP's Pharmacy
Identification Card Inplenentati on Gui de and should be | ooked at
as an exanple of what is expected to be on the card.

Number 1543

REED STOOPS, Lobbyist for Aetna and Health Insurance Association
of Anerica, infornmed the conmittee that he is representing M ke
Waggins [Vice President, National Accounts, Aetna] who is unable
to testify today. He thanked Representative Mirkowski and M.
Eri ckson for their work on HB 318 and trying to take into
account the objections of the insurance industry. He noted that
there are additional changes that the insurance industry would
like to see nade to Version R

MR. STOOPS explained that the first problem is that the
i nsurance industry would "strongly prefer"” a national standard
because nost insurers do business in all 50 states. He
mentioned that it is difficult to conply with each state's
slightly different set of standards.

Number 1437

MR, STOOPS identified a second concern [his clients have] as the
uniform prescription drug information card that HB 318 is
seeking. The uniform prescription drug information card that HB
318 is seeking is "really different™ from what the industry
usual ly issues, which is a nulti-purpose, general health benefit

card. This card is used when one goes to a doctor or a
pharmaci st and has the nanme of the conpany on it and one's ID
nunber . He explained that from the perspective of the

phar maci st, they want a uniform prescription drug card, which is
an exclusive card that deals with drugs. He stated, "Wat we've

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 20, 2002



ended up with is sort of a blend, whereby now we're trying to
make our general health care card a drug card.” There have been
sonme conflicts between objectives in trying to nake that happen.

Number 1406

MR. STOOPS said that based on the initial testinony heard, [his
clients] thought that there was an agreenent that Aetna, Blue
Cross, and sone of the other mjor insurers had sufficient
information on their general card, and that reissuance of those
cards was not going to be required by virtue of the |egislation.
Trying to incorporate the new standards with the information
that's already on the cards would require even Aetna woul d have
to reissue its' cards. Aetna has approximately 90,000 cards in
pl ace in Al aska, and the cost to reissue those cards would be a
coupl e hundred thousand dollars, or about $2 a card.

MR. STOOPS expl ai ned that pharnmaci sts have an el ectronic system
in the pharmacies that link directly up with [Aetna's] database.
A lot of the information that's necessary to process a claimis
in that conputer database and not on the card. Utimtely, the
way the paynent gets issued is electronically. Al nmost all of
the pharmacists in [Al aska] are linked electronically, at |east
to Aetna.

Nunber 1318

MR. STOOPS next addressed sone issues in the current draft of HB
318, and offered sonme anendnents. The first anmendnent, on page

2, lines 22-24, would be to clarify that [HB 318] may not be
construed to require the reissuance of a uniform prescription
drug information card issued before the effective date. He

noted that would alleviate the concern about a fiscal note.

MR. STOOPS al so noted that the National Council for Prescription
Drug Pharmacy Program ldentification Card |nplenentation Cuide
is an either/or standard. He said this isn't a [nornal
occurrence] in a piece of legislation to |eave the standards,
whi ch can change fromtine to tinme, up to the director of [the
D vision of |nsurance]. He stated, "I think it would be our
preference just to state whatever the standards are clearly in
statute, and then amend those statutes fromtine to tinme if you
find that those need to be anended in the future."

Nunber 1244

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- March 20, 2002



MR. STOOPS explained that [Aetna] 1is trying to match the
information on its card to "the language in (Q¢(i), (D, and
(E)." He stated it's confusing what those [sections] actually
mean, so we had sone suggestions to clarify the |anguage in (D)
and (E) so that we're sure that the information we're providing
is what the statute asked for." He offered to submt copies of
Aetna and Blue Cross' identification cards. He said, "
couldn't find what that bank identification nunber conforned to
- at least on the two cards that we had available to us."

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked if M. Stoops indicated that he wanted to
delete the international bank ID nunber [BIN]. She offered her
understanding that there is an "international nunber and then
there's a bank identification nunber.”

Nunmber 1189

MR. STOOPS explained that [Aetna's card] has a group nunber, a
control nunber, a payor nunmber, and an RX group nunber. The
Blue Cross card has a group nunber and an RX group nunber, but
it doesn' t have anything that corresponds to a bank

i dentification nunber. Since the card currently doesn't have
the required nunber, [Aetna] would have to reissue cards for the
sake of providing that nunber. He said if the first anendnent

he suggested were adopted, [Aetna] wouldn't have to reissue the
current card and could "deal with that in the future."

MR. STOOPS next addressed sections (D) and (E), which indicated
what address and phone nunbers need to be on the card. He
expl ai ned:

Generally we've got the name of the conpany, which is
Aetna, the post office box, the mailing address, and
there's an 800 nunber that you as the enrollee or any
provi der can call. And if its pharmacists that calls
that 800 nunber, they can be routed from that nunber
to another pharmacy claim office. But by putting two
nunbers on the card then you create sonme confusion
anong the enrollee on "which 800 nunber am | supposed
to call?" And in nost cases you the nenber ... just
want a single 800 nunber that can route you wherever
you need to go for the information, rather than having
mul tiple nunbers for multiple purposes. It's not the
end of the world if we have to provide it, but it just
seens that there's a sinpler way to acconplish that
obj ecti ve.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- March 20, 2002



CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked if this nunber requires one "to sit on the
line for 15 mnutes tracking, [for exanple], 'OK now if your
| ast nane begins with an MU R, you can press 3.'"

MR, STOOPS explained that every tine a pharmacist enters into a
contract they receive a "special [phone] nunber" [so he/she w |
have a direct contact nunber].

Nunmber 1058
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked how often [ Aetna] reissues cards.

MR. STOOPS said it depends. A new card needs to be issued every
time a contract changes. Normal Iy an insurance conpany wll
have a contract for 1-3 years with a custonmer, and when that
contract expires if there's a new carrier the card wll be
rei ssued. He stated, "I don't believe there's any [cards] that
stay in effect indefinitely, they're ... reissued as necessary
on a rotating basis.”

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD related his belief that there isn't any
established tine in which any of the carriers reissue cards.

MR, STOOPS agreed, but specified that if there is going to be a
requirenent to reissue the <cards, then there wll be an
associ ated cost and thus there is the need for a fiscal note.
Furthernore, he inquired as to what information is really
necessary for the pharnacist. He questioned whether there
should be two separate cards with one for drugs or should there
be a singl e-purpose card.

Nunmber 0946

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked whet her anyone has introduced federal
| egislation to deal with this issue.

MR, STOOPS infornmed the committee that there have been neetings
with the National Pharnmacists by all the najor insurers.
Al t hough there was the recomrendation for national |egislation
he said he wasn't sure whether the | egislation was introduced.

CHAI R MURKOWSBKI ret urned to t he i nt ernati onal bank
identification nunber and related her wunderstanding that the
i nsurance conpanies worked wth the pharmacy associations on
this NCPDP pharmacy identification card guide. Therefore, she
expressed concern that Aetna, a mmjor player in Alaska, says
that it isn't aware of one of the things included in the guide.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- March 20, 2002



MR, STOOPS said that he understood that there was an agreenent
that the pharmaci sts would work coll aboratively in order to seek
national I|egislation such that all insurers would have simlar
nati onal standards. M. Stoops said he didn't know which
insurers participated in the devel opnment of that inplenentation
gui de and whether those insurers would be the sanme each year
Al though all of the H AA nenbers or Aetna wouldn't all be
i ncl uded, everyone doing business in the state would have to
neet the guidelines if the Director of Insurance specified the
need to nmeet the regulations [based on the guidelines].

CHAI R MURKOWSKI poi nted out the "or"™ on page 2, line 2.

MR. STOOPS agr eed. However, he said he read the bill to nean
that it's in the opinion of the director and thus the director
can |l ook at the standards in the bill "or" the director can | ook
at the inplenentation guide and nake a decision. If the
director chooses the inplenentation guide, then the standards
will change [as tine passes]. Therefore, the conservative
preference is to |look to the statutes for what is required, and
if there is a need to change, then the legislature would
determ ne the changes through a process such as this. M.
St oops enphasized that of all the issues with the bill, this
isn't the largest of them

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that on page 2, line 1, the
| anguage "current” means any future guides wth revisions.
Therefore, the director would be forced to review any change in
the guide "or" [follow paragraph (2)].

Nunmber 0655

LI Z MERTEN, Northwest Regional Director, National Association of
Chain Drugstores (NACD), explained, from the perspective of
pharmaci es, that the real purpose of this bill is to sinplify
the clains processing by ensuring that all necessary infornmation
to process a drug claimis contained on the card in sone sort of
standardi zed readable format. She informed the conmittee of a
survey contracted by NACDS in 1999, which found that 20 percent
of a pharmacist's day was spent rectifying clains of patients
that were standing before them In a survey released |ast nonth
by Shearing (ph), now 29 percent of a pharnmacist's tine is spent
on this matter. The anount of tinme spent on rectifying clains
coupled with the shortage in pharnmacists and the increase in
prescriptions in the US. [is of concern]. The Shearing (ph)
survey asked pharmaci sts what woul d provide them the opportunity

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- March 20, 2002



to speed up the process and take time with their patients,
behind the answer of increased utilization of technicians was
t he standardi zed pharnacy identification card.

M5. MERTEN directed attention to page 2, line 18, which
specifies "unless provided electronically at the tinme of
adj udi cation." She informed the committee that in a neeting

with Blue Cross, Aetna, and herself all agreed to insert the
af orenenti oned | anguage. That |anguage was inserted in order to
address that when a pharmacist is on-line adjudicating a case
with Aetna that is where the phone nunber appears on the screen.

Based on the [sanme] neeting, the |anguage on page 2, lines 8-13
was devel oped after the actual identifiers that were included in
earlier versions of the bill were renoved. Ms. Merten
hi ghlighted the inportance of the |anguage on page 2, |ines 24-
26, which says, "does not require issuance of a separate
prescription drug information card if an existing information
card contains the information required under this section.” The

intent has never been to require a separate prescription card
but rather that in working with the insurers, a new card with
t he necessary information would be issued.

M5. MERTEN turned to the "or" on page 2, line 2, which she said
was inserted to address the concerns heard from insurance
conpanies who are concerned wth conpliance of the NCPDP
gui del i nes. She recalled that after the neeting with the
insurers, one of the insurers asked what would happen if the BIN
nunber and the control nunber were no longer used to process
their clains. Ms. Merten pointed out that in such a situation
the NCPDP guidelines would be so inportant because it would
elimnate the need to return to the legislature to address the
st at ut es. The "or" provides flexibility to not be |ocked into
the laundry list specified in paragraph (2) on page 2, line 3.

M5. MERTEN, in response to Representative Hayes'  earlier
gquestion, informed the commttee that |egislation has been
introduced at the federal |evel. However, that legislation is
tied to senior drug legislation that has noved very far in the
process. At this point, the pharmacists need help. In
conclusion, Ms. Merten encouraged the commttee's support of the
| egi sl ati on.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI r et ur ned to t he i nternational bank
identification nunmber

TAPE 02-40, SIDE A

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- March 20, 2002



CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked if the international bank identification
nunber is sonmething that nust be included in the laundry Ilist,
or could the |anguage on page 2, lines 8-10, say that the card
"may include" the itens listed in sub-subparagraphs (i)-(iii).

M5. MERTEN said that the BIN is probably the npbst inportant
nunber because it's the one nunber that absolutely has to be
avai lable to the pharmaci st for processing. She expl ai ned that
the BIN specifies where the pharnmacist is to go to process the
claim The BINis required in any clains processing.

Nunber 0174

CHAI R MJRKOABKI expressed her confusion, then, because ngjor
conpani es say that they don't know what the BIN is.

M5. MERTEN pointed out that nopst insurance conpanies contract
the processing of their clains, and therefore aren't aware that
the [processor] uses a BIN [for then.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG surm sed then that if Blue Cross changed
its subcontracting provider, Blue Cross would have to reissue
t he card.

M5S. MERTEN replied yes. In further response to Representative
Rokeberg, Ms. Merten wasn't sure whether Blue Cross would
reissue cards if it changed its tertiary care provider in
Al aska.

Number 0349

CHAI R MURKOWNSKI asked if there is any national discussion with
regard to the requirement to reissue new cards within the next
year.

M5. BYRNE answered that H PAA will go into effect for insurers
in April 2003. The piece that ties into this discussion is that
there are a nunber of programmatic changes that insurers wll
have to go through in order to conply with the privacy issues
and with HI PAA Therefore, insurers will no |onger be allowed
to use social security nunbers as a unique identifier, which
Aetna, Blue Cross, and others use. This change will necessitate
reprogramm ng of their software system and new cards wll have
to be issued. Ther ef or e, while insurers are already
reprogrammng their conputers, they mght as well do everything
at once for the H PAA requirenents and a uniform prescription

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- March 20, 2002



card. Ms. Byrne confirmed that the July 1, 2003, effective date
falls after the H PAA requirenments take effect.

Nunmber 0559

CHAI R MURKOWBKI cl osed the public testinony. She then turned to
the concern about issuing new cards and the fiscal note that
woul d be required. The suggested |language is that [the
insurers] wouldn't be required to reissue the benefit card prior
to the effective date of this section, July 2003. As nentioned
earlier, this time frame would fall after the H PAA changes and
t hus she questioned the concern.

MR. STOOPS related his wunderstanding that whether the H PAA
changes will require insurers to issue a new card is specul ation
at this point. In regard to his suggested |anguage, M. Stoops
recalled from the first hearing that the nmjor insurers in
Al aska have adequate information on their cards. Therefore, to

make that clear he suggested: "An insurer who has a card in
effect today, before this law went into effect, wouldn't reissue
the card until they're normally required to reissue it." He

acknowl edged that the opportunity nmay cone when the H PAA
changes happen. When those [H PAA] changes occur and whatever
standards are adopted by the legislature, then the change would
be made then, avoiding the fiscal inpact that is of concern.

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI asked if Aetna regularly reissues cards on a
cycl e.

MR. STOOPS explained that when the state goes out to bid for
i nsurance, the terns of the contract are changed. Therefore

there is wusually one or nore tinmes in which the cards are
rei ssued during the termof a contract. Wth other clients, the
rei ssuance of cards would occur when the client requires such or
when Aetna does so for its own admnistrative efficiency. The
rei ssuance is done on a rotating basis, which he presumed other
insurers did as well. In further response to Chair Mirkowski,
M. Stoops recalled that Aetna is in year two of five under the
current contract with the state. He related his understanding
that there is a plan to reissue cards before the end of this
contract. He explained that this reissuance will occur partly
because the state wants changes. Again, the best way to avoid a
fiscal inpact is to specify an effective date and as new cards
are issued, those cards nust neet the requirenents of the
statute.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- March 20, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked if there is any way to find out about
the H PAA requirenent as that seens to be the answer to the
question before putting a $200,000 fiscal note on the bill.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI disagreed that this would create a $200, 000
fiscal note. She related her understanding that H PAA currently
says that a social security nunber can't be used as the
identifier. She asked if there is anyone who could speak [to
how t hi ngs are going to go].

Number 0962

STAN Rl DGEVAY, Deputy Director, Division of | nsur ance,
Department of Community & Econom c Devel opnent (DCED), i nforned
the commttee that the general belief is that H PAA privacy
regulations are slated to go into effect in April 2003.
However, nost believe that April 2003 is too soon and thus M.
Ri dgeway wasn't sure that the April 2003 date would be net. He
noted that there is a website that deals with frequently asked
gquestions and answers wth regard to the wuniformty for
I nsurance cards. He said that the commttee may find this
i nformation hel pful.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG recalled that there are nore than 600
pages of federal regulations and thus the conplexity of this has
made the effective date a noving target.

Number 1071

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG npved that the conmittee adopt the
foll ow ng anendnent, Anmendnent 1:
Page 2, line 31
Del et e paragraph (4)
Insert "may not be construed to require the
rei ssuance of a health benefit card issued prior to
the effective date of this section.”

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES objected and asked if Anmendnent 1 would
still leave the situation in which the information isn't the
information that the pharmaci sts want or need.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI related her understanding that at the date of
the adoption of [this legislation] everyone would receive new
cards. As the new cards are issued, the new cards would be
subject to the requirenents established in this |egislation.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- March 20, 2002



M5. BYRNE agreed and specified that Version R is the result of
neetings through Ms. Merten with representatives of insurance
conpani es. She stressed that nore than one insurance conpany
was at the table.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG renarked that it doesn't make sense that
a conpany could be required to reissue a card before the
effective date of this |egislation.

M5. BYRNE noted that this was a request from the insurance
i ndustry.

MR. STOOPS explained his wunderstanding that the effect of

Amendnment 1 would be that once the card is issued, until the
card is reissued after the [effective] date, [the card] would
remain in effect. M. Stoops clarified that the desire was to
keep the current card in effect until it was necessary to
reissue the card in any case, at which tine the standards of the
bill would be incorporated. Therefore, the fiscal inpact is
avoi ded.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCRD asked whet her Amendnent 1 works for the
Nort hwest Ironworkers and other self-insured groups around the
state.

MR, STOOPS stated that the policy issue is in regard to whether
the legislature feels that the standards are inportant enough
that they should be nmet now. However, there would be a fiscal
i npact to such because it wll cost the insurer a couple dollars
a card to reissue the card. He pointed out that the cost wll
cone right to [the state for those under the] State of Al aska's
system However, the insurance conpanies for the self-insured
groups wll pay for it, and therefore the enrollee wll
ultimately pay the cost. In response to Representative Hayes,
M. Stoops explained that [were H PAA regulations to go into
effect] and everyone had to reissue the cards, then the cost
woul d be blended into the cost of doing business. But, if this
| egislation were to pass, reissuing the cards would be purely
because of the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that the health insurance
industry is one of the few industries that has no price
el asticity, and therefore it can pass along [the inpact] of
what ever it wants.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- March 20, 2002



MR. STOOPS noted that for the State of Al aska, [Aetna] is only
the claim admnistrator and the state itself determnes the
rat e.

Number 1409

REPRESENTATIVE HAYES inquired as to why the language [in
Amendment 1] wasn't included in Version R

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI recalled that the Ilanguage [attenpted] to
clarify that the requirement [came into play] when a new card

was reissued. She said she didn't believe it was anyone's
intent that on the effective date of this act everyone would
recei ve new cards. However, there was the assunption that what

is on the Aetna cards already nmet the requirenments being sought
inthe bill.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.
There being no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.
Nunber 1527

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nobved Amendnent 2, which would on page
1, line 14 - page 2, line 2, delete references to the Nationa
Council for Prescription Drug Prograns Pharmacy Identification
Card Inplenentation Guide and renunber accordingly. Al so, the
anmendnent woul d specify the mnimum requirenments for the card in
the current paragraph (2).

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI obj ect ed. She related her belief that the
| anguage in paragraph (1) on page 1, line 14 - page 2, line 2,
is to give the director sonme fornmal guidelines. She said she
would want to know that the director was |ooking at these
guidelines when inplenmenting the standards. Furt her nore,
because the guidelines come about due to the collaboration and
the discussion from both the pharmacy industry and the insurance
industry it seens inportant to reference it.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES agreed wth Chair Mirkowski . Wt hout the
"or" he feared that the problenms with the nechanical code would
surface here.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER noted his confusion wth the |anguage

"provisions of an inplenentation guide prepared by a pharnacy
associ ation."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- March 20, 2002



CHAIR MURKOWBKI clarified that Aetna is saying that it wasn't
part of the working group [that devel oped the National Counci
for Prescription Drug Progranms Pharnmacy ldentification Card
| mpl enentation Guide] and thus they don't want to refer to the
gui de.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that the primary reason he supports
the anendnent is because he believes that Al aska's insurance
people and the director of the Dvision of Insurance and

pharmaceutical folks should all be at the table together. The
guide referenced in the legislation is one in which Al aska's
people weren't involved. Therefore, he recomends |eaving the

decisions to the director and the |ocal players.

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI pointed out that under the current draft the
director doesn't have to confer with anyone.

Nunber 1790

MR. RI DGEWAY acknow edged that the insurers don't want to end up
with 50 [different] cards. However, he pointed out that part of
the role of NAIC is look at uniformty. M. Ridgeway said he
feels that the "or" |anguage offers clarity, and furthernore the
regul ation process would allow all parties to be part of the
devel opnment and i npl enentati on of those regul ations.

Upon determ ning there was no further discussion with regard to
Amendnment 2, a roll <call vote was taken. Represent ati ves
Rokeberg and Meyer voted for the adoption of Anmendnent 2.
Representatives Crawford, Hayes, Mirkowski, and Kott voted
agai nst the adoption of Anendnent 2. Therefore, Anmendnent 2
failed by a vote of 2:4. [ Al t hough soneone "voted" on
Representative Halcro's behalf, Representative Halcro was not in
attendance for this vote.]

Number 1952

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved that the conmittee adopt Anendnent
3, which reads as foll ows:

Page 2, line 11,
Del et e sub-subparagraph (i)

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG reiterated earlier testinony that Blue
Cross - Washi ngton/ Al aska covers over 50 percent of the insureds

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- March 20, 2002



[in Al aska] and does not have the [international bank
identification nunber] on the card. He said that he didn't
believe it was on the Aetna card either. He pointed out that
the adoption of Anmendnent 1 neans that these conpanies can't be
forced to reissue these cards, and therefore |eaving sub-
subparagraph (i) in the bill would result in the conpanies being
nonconpliant with the |aw

REPRESENTATIVE HAYES inquired as to the use of t he
[international bank identification nunber].

M5. ERICKSON explained that the BIN is an electronic clains

routing information numnber. She related her understandi ng that
the Blue Cross and Aetna cards have the BIN, although it isn't
| abel ed as such. For exanple, on sone it has been |abeled as

the "ID NO." She also recalled that the payor nunber of Aetna's
card is conparable to the BIN

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that per statute, the card
would have to be l|abeled differently, and therefore the card
woul d have to be reissued. Furthernore, Representative Rokeberg
guessed that every pharmacist in the Al aska knows the BIN for
Bl ue Cross - Washi ngt on/ Al aska.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI inquired as to the problem of |[|eaving sub-
subparagraph (i) when the nunber is already included [on the
card] not to nention that it's the key identifier.

M5. ERICKSON indicated that wusing the |I|anguage, "which may
i nclude"” and then specifying the laundry list of itens would be
appropriate because then the other conponents could be used if
the BIN isn't available. Therefore, M. Erickson suggested that
the committee not delete sub-subparagraph (i) and consider
i ncl udi ng the | anguage "whi ch may incl ude".

Nunmber 2095

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agreed that providing the discretion
with the |anguage "which nmay include" could be the solution.
Representati ve Rokeberg w thdrew Anmendnent 3. He then noved
that the commttee adopt conceptual Anendnment 4, which reads as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 10, after "routing,"

Del ete "i ncl udi ng"
I nsert "may include”

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- March 20, 2002



There bei ng no objection, conceptual Anendnent 4 was adopt ed.
The commttee took a brief at-ease.
Number 2140

MR. STOOPS questioned whether the standard would be net if [the
nunber is provided electronically], although a snall percentage

of pharmacists aren't I|inked electronically. He expressed
concern that the |anguage [on page 2, line 17] isn't clear in
this regard. He explained that the card itself has a nunber
that the pharmacist can call and be |inked. However, the

pharmaci sts are given a direct nunber when under contract wth
Aet na. The only reason to not include that nunber on the card
is to avoid the custonmer calling the pharmacy clai m nunber.

REPRESENTATI VE = ROKEBERG npved that the conmttee adopt
conceptual Anmendnent 5, which reads as foll ows:

Page 2, line 18, after "assistance"
Insert "or a link to a telephone nunber for
pharmacy benefit cl ainms assi stance”

MR. STOOPS explained that he had suggested that the card could
specify an 800 nunber that would link to the pharmacy claim
nunber as opposed to having two nunbers on the card.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG cl arified that if conceptual Anmendnent 5
were to be adopted then on page 2, lines 17-18, subparagraph (E)
would read as follows: "a help desk telephone nunber for
pharmacy benefit clains assistance or a link to a telephone
nunber for pharmacy benefit clainms assistance, unless provided
el ectronically at the tinme of adjudication.”

There being no objection, conceptual Amendnent 5 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved on to subparagraph (D) on page 2,
| ines 14-16, and questi oned whet her the |anguage "nane" referred
to the conpany nane.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO pointed out t hat t he "benefits
adm nistrator” refers to the conpany. He pointed out that the
| anguage specifies "the nane and address of the benefits
adm nistrator or other entity responsible for prescription
clainms submssion ..."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- March 20, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if M. Stoop's concern with this
was because Version R is drafted only to prescription benefit
clainms rather than all benefit medical clains.

MR, STOOPS answer ed yes. He pointed out that Aetna adm nisters
the pharmacy [clainms] and thus Aetna's address should suffice
However, Blue Cross hires a [benefits admnistrator] and under
subpar agr aph (D)

TAPE 02-40, SIDE B

MR. STOOPS conti nued: ... Blue Cross would have to [insert the
nane and address] of whoever they contract with for prescription
benefits. Therefore, he assuned that there would be two

addresses [on the <card] for those <conpanies that don't
adm nister their own prescription clains: the name and address
of the conmpany and the nane and address of the contractor.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO indicated that the 1|anguage "or other
entity responsible" takes care of the aforenentioned.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG surm sed that the card would have to be
changed every tinme the insurer changed contractors.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said, "You should anyways, | would
i magi ne, because, of course, ... you're going to allow your
custoners to know who to call."”

REPRESENTATI VE = ROKEBERG  poi nt ed out t hat this S for
correspondence [via] "snail mil."

CHAIR MURKOWSEKI clarified that this language is in reference to
submtting clainms, and she agreed that the information [would be
necessary].

MR. STOOPS pointed out that insurers may have clains routed to a
mai n address and part of it would then be sent to the pharmacy
claimsection. He explained that he felt it would be sufficient
to have the nanme and address of the insurer.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO suggested that perhaps a disclainer
stating that certain nunbers are provided for the use of the
phar macy only.

MR, STOOPS said that the question then becones whether the
custoner would actually read that disclainer.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- March 20, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES renarked that it would be best to | eave the
| anguage as it is and if it is found to be a problem it could
be addressed via amendnent on the fl oor.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG revi ewed the |anguage "or other entity
responsi bl e" and agreed that it would cover anyone.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES disclosed that he has a conflict of
interest due to his position in the insurance industry.

Number 2210

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES noved to report CSHB 318, Version 22-
LS1061\R, Ford, 3/14/02, as anended out of comittee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.
There being no objection, CSHB 318(L&C) was reported from the
House Labor and Conmmerce Standing Committee.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:50 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- March 20, 2002



